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Chairman’s Statement

TERE

Competition in the free newspaper market continued to be
intense in 2012. With new entrants having joined the fray
since the second half of 2011, the market was inundated
with double the volume of free papers and 50% more copies
of newspapers in total than before. On the one hand, this
put the incumbent players to the test — not only the free
newspapers but also, to different extents, paid newspapers
and other media segments. On the other hand, this allowed
the free newspaper market as a whole to expand and more
quickly develop into a mainstream media. Free newspapers’
share of total newspaper advertising has increased to 38% in
2012, from 30% in 2010 and 32% in 2011.

In the background, the Hong Kong economy only saw a
modest growth of 1.4% in 2012, dragged by an austere
global economic environment characterized by the
protracted euro debt crisis and fragile recovery of the
advanced economies. The local stock market fluctuated
during the year and was for the most part lackluster, whilst
the property market continued to surge especially in prices.
The overall advertising market was shored up by relatively
solid private consumption expenditure. However, although
total newspaper advertising grew year-on-year, the majority
of the growth was taken up by free newspapers and
paid newspapers in fact recorded a decline. Among paid
newspapers, the mass-market ones experienced the biggest
attrition, and not only in advertising revenue but also in
circulation and readership.

The intensified competition among free newspapers turned
out to have only minor impact on the Group. After more
than a year, the new comers have not made clear inroads
into the market and the Group’s leading position has
remained intact. The revenue of the Group’s core Media
operations in 2012 was relatively stable despite the acutely
competitive environment; however, the Group’s profitability
was affected given the additional costs associated in
particular with a higher circulation volume of Headline
Daily to take on the competition.

With its number 1 position unchallenged, Headline Daily
remained as the largest-circulating and most widely-read
newspaper in Hong Kong, and both its circulation and
readership currently overwhelm its competitors by a large
margin. And notwithstanding the taxing circumstances,
Headline Daily was able to achieve an increase in both its
advertising volume and page rates during the year. This may
be attributable to the competitive strengths of Headline Daily
which have been established over the years and further
enhanced in the face of the competition. The comprehensive
and popular editorial content of Headline Daily rendered it
the free newspaper of choice to readers, while its superior
reader profile and proven advertising effectiveness also
made it the preferred product to advertisers.
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Chairman’s Statement

The Group’s paid Media products, including Sing Tao Daily
and the Magazine operations, held up rather well in 2012
and made respectable contribution to the Group’s results.
Sing Tao Daily was one of only few paid newspapers to be
relatively unaffected by the challenge from free newspapers,
thanks to its unique positioning as a high quality middle-
class newspaper focusing on providing value-add content to
its readers. Our Magazine operations led by the flagship East
Week continued to grow its advertising revenue, and at the
same time made significant progress in developing its multi-
media business.

In my Statement last year, [ expressed optimism for the
long term success of our free newspaper business, and my
confidence in this has been boosted by our performance
in facing the challengers during the year. As said, growth
of the free newspaper market has been heightened by the
competition and market share is being gained from paid
newspapers and other media at a rate like never before.
Headline Daily has proven its predominance over its
competitors, and in due course the process of elimination
will knock out the weaker players, with the strongest
standing to benefit the most from an enlarged and more
developed market. Not only are we confident that Headline
Daily will emerge as a leading mass-market mainstream
newspaper, we also firmly believe in the future of free
newspapers as a form of new media.

In conclusion, T would like to offer my thanks to our
directors, management and staff whose hard work and
enthusiasm has made our achievements this year possible.
I also extend my gratitude to our advertisers, readers and
shareholders for their ongoing support.

Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2013
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Major Events of the Year
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At the presentation ceremony of “Leader of the Year 2012" officiated by Mr. Leung Chun Ying,
Chief Executive of the HKSAR, and Mr. Charles Ho, Chairman of Sing Tao News Corporation,
winners in the five categories —“Commerce & Industry / Finance’,"“Community / Public Affairs’
“Education / Research’, “Culture / Performing Arts”and “Sports” — were acknowledged for their
exceptional contribution to Hong Kong. The “Leader of the Year Award”is now a prominent
annual event and a showcase of many success stories of Hong Kong.
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Major Events of the Yea
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The annual “Sing Tao Inter-School Debating Competition”
and the “HK Direct Subsidy Scheme Schools & Primary
Schools Admission Expo” jointly organized by Sing Tao Daily,
Smart Parents and EDUplus.com.hk are highly praised in the
academic sector.
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Sing Tao Daily’s content on education has always been well
recognized by teachers, students and parents. To serve their
needs, it has enhanced its content on languages, liberal studies
and DSE, as well as provided specialized guidebooks and
comprehensive learning materials through its education section
and website.
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As the best-read parenting publication in Hong Kong, Smart
Parents further enriched its content and introduced new
attractions to its membership scheme.
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Sing Tao Daily’s high value-
add content is tailored for its
middle-class readers. In 2012,
it pioneered the free “Smart P
Guide"booklet, including “Eat
and Play” series and “Mobile
phone and Tablet PC" series.
In addition, “Sing Tao Soccer”
published on Saturdays was
expanded, and a variety of
cookbooks were offered on
Sundays. .
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To mark its 7th anniversary, Headline Daily launched an all-new promotion campaign to convey its success
based on an innovative business model. In addition to a series of new columns by celebrity contributors,
Headline Daily introduced “V-A Valuable Weekend"in its Saturday features section, providing the most up-
to-date information on lifestyle, entertainment, beauty, dining and recreation. Also, Headline Daily is now
available via a comprehensive range of mobile platforms including iPhone, iPad and Android smart phone
and tablet apps.

In support of environmental protection, Headline Daily launched a recycling scheme at thirteen stations
along the East Rail Line, Ma On Shan Rail Line and West Rail Line of the MTR. The scheme allows the
newspapers to be read by more readers and reduces paper wastage.
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Headline Daily is not only the most widely-read newspaper in Hong Kong, it is also the newspaper with the largest number L a——
of readers who are investors. Headline Finance paper has strengthened its content to include the latest market updates and d S5 w
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The Standard initiated two new distribution channels during the year. The
newspaper is now available at all MTR Airport Express stations, and can also be
redeemed at Circle-K convenience stores with a redemption card or coupons
in Headline Daily or Smart Parents.
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The Group's magazines hosted a number of reputable events - "Hong Kong Service Awards"and “Greater China Super
Brands Award"by East Week; “TOUCH Brands & TOUCH Icon Awards”by East TOUCH; “Best of I.T. Award”and “Technology
Forum”by PC Market. In addition, JET celebrated its 10th anniversary with an art exhibition. During the year, additions
to the Magazine unit's multi-media platform included East Week's Android app and new iPad apps for East TOUCH, PC
Market and JET.
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Sing Tao Daily’s overseas editions have always been active in promoting integration of Chinese and western cultures. Sing
Tao New York sponsored the Chinese Speech Contest organized by the Hong Kong Economic and Trade office, and Sing
Tao Australia held a “Uni-students Chinese Debate ” The San Francisco and Los Angeles offices also participated in a range of
marketing events.
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Major Awards of the Year
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Hong Kong News Awards 2012

20125 FH R EHEE
\
Best Arts and Culture News Reporting Best Young Reporter
RECBITHEKRE RIEH A

B Winner : Sing Tao Daily
BE (ESEHR)
FE UERERT

B 1st Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
DE I (EBH®)
FE O UEEERYZ [t ]

B Merit 1 :Sing Tao Daily
BE1 (EBA®R)
EE O YEEXRRINOBRBATEIIRE
B &

B 1st Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
DE I (ESHW)
FE . (Tte/B] RREAEENA
2.1 T8 ] 72/ NSRRI AL B
3. A BfTERE 4T T RAEE]
B 2nd Runner-up : Headline Daily
=8B (KRR
FHE 1L ERBBXE-EERL
2 EATM BEETTE
3. FELME BIBE

Best News Writing (English)
BENEREE (Hx4d)
® 1st Runner-up : The Standard
BB (EXER)
F@ : Taking a hiding

Photographic Section (Features)
BrHE (F84)
® 2nd Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily

FE (ESA®M)

TE EME

Best Science News Reporting
BRENBHEHE
B 1st Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily

ZE I (ESH®)

FE  FFERHREFRRY

B 2nd Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
Z8 (EBEH)
ITE EEAEEF R
W Merit 2 : Headline Daily
BE2 : (EEER)
FE - [bERF] BERY

Best News Writing (Chinese)
REFERE (PXE)
B 1st Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily

D8 (EBRA®)

TR EWELBHETEA

H 2nd Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
8 ((EBHAW)
EE O EHHRD KREEXR FFHE

Photographic Section (Sport)
BErHAE (B54)
H Merit 2 :Sing Tao Daily

BE2 ((ESRW)

B ETRE

Best News Reporting
RENBHRE
B 1st Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily

DE I (EBA®W)

FE PR K EEERS
B Merit 1: Sing Tao Daily

BE1 (EBAWR)

TE O EEETRINE
B Merit 2 :Sing Tao Daily

BHE2 ((EBAW)

TE O BVBEERIRE

Best Business News Writing (Chinese)
RELBEHFERE (hX4)
B Winner: Sing Tao Daily
HBE (EBR®)
THE O AEEWME BEEEE
WEENE TBEIE R
B Merit 1: Sing Tao Daily
BE1: (EBRA®R)
TR HRERME e 57

Best News Page Design
REHBRE R
B Winner : Sing Tao Daily

BE (EBR®)

T OAPEEREFERIIRE
B 1st Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily

28 (EBHH)

FE O AERTZHERIRE

Focus at the Frontline 2012
(R4 - RER2012) B SO LL B

Best Scoop

RIEBIHE

M 2nd Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
=8 (EBRRA®W)
T PR NAKHEEERS

Spot News
EEBHEA

B Honorable Mention : East Week

BER . CRATD

People
A¥n#E

B 2nd Runner-up : East Week
=8 (RATD
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Major Awards of the Yea
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Chinese Media Design Competition

BEPE R KR

Category: Newspaper Design
BARTE
RERERT (BT)
B Gold Award : Sing Tao Daily

8 (EBEBRH)

FRE :CIDEF| - HEEBEL RS
B Bronze Award : Headline Daily

R CRIRBE#H)

FE 1 2010-2011HEBEREHRIN

11th Asia Media Awards

Best in Design Award
(Magazine Cover Design)
REMFHE
M Bronze Award : Investment Weekly
A GREXFETD
THE O BINEREBRERE
PERRFT i1 B & B

12th Consumer Rights Reporting Awards

PE&EEBTR

| Silver Award : Sing Tao Daily
RE  (EBH®

ES-BNES
HREER TR RER BTG
RIEHERT
B Merit  :Headline Daily

EEsE - (CGEIEE®R)
B :2010-2011MEBRE RN

Category: Books and Magazines Design
ETIREE
RIERBIRT
M Bronze Award : Investment Weekly
fwEE  REXATD
T BINEREBIERRE
FERRFT SR 5 8L

RIEHERT
M Bronze Award : Sing Tao News Corporation
Annual Report 2009

fHdE | ES¥EEE2009F

W Merit  :Sing Tao Daily Hong Kong Stock
Directory

R (EBH *&?/%HQT?E M)

Category: News
DI i
B Gold Award : Sing Tao Daily
£8® (ERA®)
TE  RERBEEGHR

A MM TS AN
Category: Features
A RE

| Silver Award : East Week
RE (AT
FE O EER BRREEH
2012 New York Community Media
Alliance Ippies Awards

Best Investigative / In-depth Story
REASHRE / RAREE
B Second Place : Sing Tao Daily ( Eastern US Edition )
DE (ERHW) E=RMR
TE  EERTEXEFLES

Best Photo Essay or Online Slideshow
REBFHEHA LEER
B Second Place : Sing Tao Daily ( Eastern US Edition))
DE (EBRW) ERR
TR O INMTREAFIRSERE

2011/ 2012 NAM Ethnic Media Awards for
Northern California & Central Valley
2011/ 20123 SRER B AL MOl Ko 45 1k
iR

Outstanding Hyperlocal Report /
Feature(In-Language Publications)

REMSHER (FREH

B Winner :Sing Tao Daily (US Western Edition )
BER (ESHWM) =AM

T EAHEREFOREK

Outstanding Investigative / In-Depth
Story (In-Language Publications)

RERARER (FREFH)

B Winner :Sing Tao Daily (US Western Edition )
BiER  (EBBH®) EFAR

TE  EFREPRERSIME

Outstanding Arts, Culture &
Entertainment Story
BEMCEiHRER
B Winner :Sing Tao Daily (US Western Edition )
BiER  (EBB®) EFAR
*E CEECAFEREXE

Outstanding Photojournalism
RENBEY

B Honorable Mention : Sing Tao Daily
(US Western Edition )

(ESB®R) EAR
2012 Asian American Journalist
Association Annual Awards

AKEERRAUBFERR

Dr. Suzanne Ahn Award for Civil Rights
& Social Justice

RHEMEEREEYTSERR
B Sing Tao Daily ( Eastern US Edition )
(ESHR) ERR
R CEERFETEREF

e .

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED  Annual Report 2012




Management Discussion and Analysis

SRR S

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The consolidated revenue of Sing Tao News Corporation
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 (the
“Year”) amounted to approximately HK$2,211 million as
compared with approximately HK$2,391 million last year.
Profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$120 million as compared with
approximately HK$139 million last year.

Given the continued volatility and the unclear trend
during the Year, the Group’s treasury investment has been
conducted cautiously and recorded a positive investment
return.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
proposed a final dividend of HK4.0 cents per share. The
dividend for the Year shall be HK7.5 cents per share.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources, Gearing Ratio,
Charges on Group’s Assets

The Group maintained a strong financial position with a
net cash position throughout the Year. During the Year, the
Group paid approximately HK$62 million for deposits and
purchases of items of property, plant and equipment. As
at 31 December 2012, the Group had a net cash balance
(calculated with reference to the Group’s cash balances
and total borrowings) of approximately HK$608 million (31
December 2011: approximately HK$536 million).

The gearing ratio, defined as long-term borrowings to
equity, was zero as at 31 December 2012 (31 December
2011: zero). As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group
had not pledged any asset.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital Structure, Exposure to Fluctuations in
Exchange Rates

The Group adopts a prudent approach in managing its
treasury function and uses different hedging methods to
minimize the impact of foreign exchange fluctuations on its
financial performance.

Contingent Liabilities

Save as the corporate guarantee given to banks to secure
the banking facilities, as at 31 December 2012, the Group
did not have any contingent liability or claim which the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”) considered to be
material.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Media and Media-related Operations

The local media industry was in a phase of transformation
in 2012, with intense competition in the free newspaper
market setting off a chain of repercussions which affected
not only the incumbent free newspapers but also paid
newspapers and other media segments. New players have
entered the free newspaper market since the second half of
2011, leading to a doubling in volume of free newspapers
and a 50% surge in the total amount of newspapers
in circulation. Faced with this cut-throat competitive
environment, the Group’s Media operations held up rather
well and recorded only a slight drop in revenue, from
approximately HK$2,053.8 million in 2011 to approximately
HK$2,024.0 million in 2012, mainly due to reduced revenue
from overseas and Mainland China. At the same time, the
Group maintained a higher circulation volume of Headline
Daily and invested in other improvements as part of its
competition strategy, which temporarily resulted in lower
profit margins; accordingly, segment profit of the Media
operations registered a decrease to approximately HK$145.5
million in 2012, from approximately HK$181.3 million in
2011.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SRR S

Newspapers

According to admanGo, Hong Kong’s total newspaper
advertising revenue went up by 9% in 2012 on a year-
on-year basis. However, the increase was almost entirely
accounted for by free newspapers, and paid newspapers in
fact saw a decline of 1%. This indicates that the intensified
competition among free newspapers has led to an
expansion in their overall market share, at the expense of
paid newspapers and especially the mass-market ones. The
development of free newspapers into a mainstream media,
sped up by the heightened competition, has caused readers
as well as advertisers to switch from some traditional paid
newspapers.

Headline Daily is well positioned to benefit from this
development. In the midst of the severe competition,
Headline Daily continued its lead and remained firmly as
the number 1 free newspaper in Hong Kong. Its average
daily circulation was raised to over 880,000 copies in 2012
in response to the competition, and its current circulation
volume exceeds that of its closest rival by more than 50%.
As the most widely-read newspaper in Hong Kong, Headline
Daily’s average readership of 1,513,000 in 2012 (according
to the latest survey by Ipsos Media Atlas) also surpassed
other newspapers by over 40%. In addition, the same survey
ranked the stand-alone Headline Finance paper as the most
popular financial newspaper in Hong Kong with the largest
readership. During the year, Headline Daily continued to
enhance its content to further gain readers’ loyalty, such as
the launch of an all-new Saturday features section named
“VeA Valuable Weekend”. Headline Daily reinforced itself
as the free newspaper preferred not just by readers but
also advertisers, and became more and more recognized
as a cost-effective mass-market advertising medium.
Consequently, the advertising revenue of Headline Daily was
untouched by the new market entrants and continued to
rise in 2012, albeit at a slower rate given that the presence
of more competitors has put a cap on growth in advertising
page rates.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Although paid newspapers in general were confronted with
the challenge from free newspapers, Sing Tao Daily was
largely unaffected and delivered satisfactory results in 2012.
As a middle-class newspaper, Sing Tao Daily differentiated
itself from mass-market newspapers by focusing on high
value-add content. Renowned for its education and lifestyle
sections, Sing Tao Daily continued to offer high quality
content in these areas. In addition to making available a
range of Liberal Studies guidebooks and learning references
tailored for the new DSE examination system, it pioneered
the free “Smart Guide” series, a handy booklet bundled with
the newspaper which carried the newest tips on “Eat and
Play” and “Mobile Phone and Tablet PC”. These and other
specialized content carved out a niche in the market for
Sing Tao Daily and allowed it to maintain a relatively stable
readership. Advertising revenue was also stable thanks to
good growth in high-yield categories such as automobiles,
watches and other luxury goods.

The Standard performed in line with expectations in 2012.
The competition in the free newspaper market had some
slight impact in general, but The Standard remained resilient
in terms of its advertising. It continued to gain market share
in new advertising categories, such as overseas properties,
and supplemented its revenue with special projects. In order
to further refine its circulation network, two new distribution
channels were initiated in 2012 — The Standard is now
available at all MTR Airport Express stations, and may be
redeemed at Circle-K convenience stores with coupons or
redemption cards. These schemes allowed The Standard
to reach its targeted readers more effectively and also
improved the cost efficiency of distributing the newspaper.

The overseas operations of Sing Tao Daily were adversely
affected by the weak global economy in 2012, characterized
by a recession in Europe and tepid recovery in the US. In
addition, traditional newspapers in overseas markets faced
challenges from other media including free newspapers
and the internet. Given these, Sing Tao Daily’s overseas
operations were diligent in improving their editorial quality,
directing their sales efforts at the new immigrant Chinese
communities and streamlining their business organizations
to control costs. As a result, the overseas operations only
suffered a minor setback in profitability, with the key
markets in the US and Canada proving to be the most
resistant to the testing conditions.
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SRR S

Magazines

The Group’s Magazine unit continued to deliver respectable
growth in advertising revenue and profit in 2012. In
particular, the flagship magazine East Week recorded the
most notable progress in financial results, thanks to its
professional and exclusive news reporting which gave it
rising recognition as an influential current affairs magazine.
PC Market also saw significant improvement in performance,
as the advertising market for digital and computer products
took a positive turn in 2012 while at the same time the
magazine undertook measures to save editorial and printing
costs. The other titles including East Touch, JET, Spiral and
Caz Buyer maintained a steady trend.

The magazine sector in Hong Kong was to some extent
afflicted by the free newspapers’ competition which, coupled
with the growing prevalence of new forms of media,
caused a general decline in magazine circulation sales and
readership. To counter against this as well as to broaden
its advertising revenue sources, the Group’s Magazine unit
committed additional resources during the year to build
up its multi-media business. The magazines’ websites were
continuously being upgraded, and a range of iPhone, iPad
and Android applications were introduced for all the titles.
East Week’s website, combining content both from the
magazine and specially made for online viewing, gathered
increasing traffic. The full contents of PC Market, East Touch
and JET have been made available via tablet and smart
phone devices on a paid subscription basis, giving readers
a novel experience which meets with their latest buying
and reading habits. These efforts have helped to sustain the
readership of the Group’s magazines and provide a platform
for capturing new cross-media advertising revenue.

Non-Media Operations
Trading

Revenue of the Group’s Trading unit further decreased
in 2012 from approximately HK$330.3 million in 2011 to
approximately HK$179.8 million, as the Group continued
to rationalize the non-core Trading business. The camera
distribution market in the PRC remained competitive and the
Trading unit consciously focused on selling higher-margin
products to maximize its profit. This also allowed the unit
to further reshape its operational structure and cut costs;
although profit margins thus improved, the contraction
in business volume still resulted in a decline in segment
profit from approximately HK$10.2 million in 2011 to
approximately HK$8.2 million in 2012.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2012

REEMGEBR_ZE—ZFHNESRARET
BEHESTHEOAE EEMES(RATD 2B %
BERLHEBEZ HIXRBROFAERESH
}ﬂiﬁﬁxﬁwﬁﬁ ggﬁjij‘J‘%:Fﬁm 1%XE/L:\|EJ ° 5
M\<Hﬂﬁﬁm§ﬁkﬁ&§ Itk 75 B A U
ENERNEETSR 2 — 0% ' RIRKZE

ﬁ?ﬂhmﬁé%?&ﬂmﬁﬁ HRMEe
¢E<<%TOUCH>> CETY sk ) FCEE
) BIRFRBEBE -

BEEMFTEEEREELNZIRERERFH
EE - NMEFHEXANEEBIBRT  BEEERRET
HEENEEAMLERT ANBHBERER
BEWARREZ Tt REEMEZILFIRARF
EERABIINERNERESERER K7 &4
R TE A RN 2REEEEHRETED
iPhone * iPad X AndroidfE BRE R (R AW) & &
(REATDE AR BE Azt mEENRS - 3
BETEIEM-(F «<J+i7/77>> (ETOUCH) & (JET)
AlRBTFREME S FHRUKEBETREEXREMH
JR3CH ERRAS @Eé%%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ%gﬂﬁﬁggﬁ’
HIREFTEEER - KIBBELE N - BHENESE AH
PR TR MEEBTRELTBEET AU
T EIUARR o

FIRBEL
¢

BEEASBEBERFEEIEZONBEZER  ZXEK
U A B = Z —— 4 49330,300,000/78 JLiE — 20 T B&
BT —ZF 49179, 800,000;%7‘1 o B R KB KR
BESBVMOHEMBDARFERE  BSHBMAES
%%%$E?mﬂﬂm§ﬁu%%WMﬁ§ﬂ'ﬁ
B B E S B RBUSERAN - fREHE
BHABEERAMS USRS  BEBUWETDERL
CRA A T — —F 410,200,000 TR EZF
— Z 498,200,000/ JT °



Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS

2013 may have begun on a more positive note across the
globe with financial and fiscal conditions having somewhat
stabilized, but economic confidence remains fragile and a
full-fledged recovery in the advanced economies is yet to
be seen. As such, the overall outlook for 2013 is dotted with
uncertainty.

In Hong Kong, the newspaper industry saw unprecedented
competition in 2012. Although the Group may claim initial
victory, given that Headline Daily has successfully defended
its number 1 position in the free newspaper market, the
curtains have not yet come down and we must remain
vigilant and keep delivering our best to readers and
advertisers to ensure our long term success. As the free
newspaper market increasingly expands its sphere, there
is ample room for growth open to Headline Daily as its
market leader. While Management notes that the competitive
conditions may continue to affect our current profit margins,
we view the prospects of our free newspapers positively
and are committed to a further year of progress in 2013.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had approximately
2,356 employees.

The Group remunerates its employees based on individual
and business performance. Competitive salaries and benefits
are paid to attract and retain quality staff. Other employee
benefits include medical insurance, discretionary bonus,
share options and provident fund schemes.
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Directors and Senior Management

SEEhaHREEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles (63) has been the Chairman
and an Executive Director of the Company and a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company since 2000. He is
also an independent non-executive director of Shun Tak
Holdings Limited. Mr. Ho contributes much to public affairs.
He is a member of the Standing Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. In addition, he
is an honorary general committee member of The Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, an economic
consultant of Shandong Provincial Government of the
People’s Republic of China, an honorary trustee of Peking
University, and a trustee of University of International
Business and Economics in China. Mr. Ho is the father of
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak, a Non-Executive Director of the
Company.

Mr. Lo Wing Hung (50) has been an Executive Director of
the Company since 2002. He is the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. He joined the Group as Chief Editor of Sing
Tao Daily in 1999. He was the Chief Executive Officer of the
newspaper group of the Company prior to his appointment
as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company in April 2005.
Mr. Lo has extensive experience in the media industry. Prior
to joining the Group, he worked for a number of major
newspaper and television companies in Hong Kong. He is
the vice chairman of The Newspaper Society of Hong Kong.

Ms. Judy Inn (49) has been an Executive Director of the
Company since 2006 and a director of a subsidiary of the
Company. She is responsible for the Group’s multi-media
business. From 2000 to 2002, she was an Executive Director
of the Company and the Chief Operating Officer of the
Group. In 2004, she was a special advisor to the Chairman
of the Company. Between 1992 and 2000, she worked for
PCCW Limited (“PCCW”). She was the senior vice president
of the PCCW'’s Interactive Multimedia Services, leading the
development of the Netvigator Portal and Interactive TV
services. Between 1992 and 1995, Ms. Inn was the group
manager of the corporate affairs in PCCW. Ms. Inn holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from The University of Hong Kong
and a Master of Arts degree from the University of London.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Jia Hongping (49) has been an Executive Director of
the Company since 2000. He is the Chief Representative
of the Beijing office of the Group and also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Jia brings with
him a wealth of experience in management, investment
and government relations to the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, he worked in various capacities in the government
departments under the China State Council. In 1998, Mr.
Jia joined the Lear Corporation China Limited as executive
director and chief representative of its Beijing office. He
holds a Bachelor’s degree from the Beijing Institute of
Technology University.

Mr. Lai Ting Yiu (61) has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 2004. He is the Chief Executive
Officer of the magazine group and also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible for
overseeing the publication of magazines of the Group. He
joined the Group in 1999 as the Executive Chief Editor of
Sing Tao Daily. Prior to joining the Group, he held various
key positions in various renowned media companies.

Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis (54) has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2005. He is the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company and also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing the finance and overall
operations of the Group. He is a Chartered Accountant and
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Commerce and Administration
from Victoria University of Wellington in New Zealand. He
is a member of the New Zealand Society of Accountants, a
certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has extensive experience
in corporate management, accounting and finance. He is an
independent non-executive director of AviChina Industry &
Technology Company Limited.

Mrs. Sy Wong Chor Fong (72) has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 1996 and is a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. She has been engaged
in the import and export trading business for many years.
She has over 30 years of experience in the distribution
of consumer products in China, including distribution of
photographic products.
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Directors and Senior Management

SEEhaHREEE

Mr. Yang Yiu Chong, Ronald Jeffrey (46) has been an
Executive Director of the Company since 2001 and a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible
for developing the Group’s printing operations and other
investments. Mr. Yang gained wealth of experience in
finance and investment arena and had participated in
numerous corporate finance activities for several listed
companies in Hong Kong as well as worked at a leading
international bank. Prior to joining the Group, he held
senior positions in Leefung Asco Printers Holdings Limited,
responsible for the group’s financial affairs and business
development. He is also a non-executive director of Karce
International Holdings Company Limited.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak (32) has been a Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 2010. Mr. Ho has years
of experience in media business development, wealth
management, and investments focusing on high-tech
industries. He is currently a general partner of Harbor
Pacific Capital, a Silicon Valley-based private investment firm
focused on venture capital and growth equity investments
in the United States and Asia. Prior to founding Harbor
Pacific Capital, Mr. Ho worked at Goldman Sachs in the
United States, Amerinvest Group in Greater China and Sing
Tao Newspapers in San Francisco. He holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Economics and a certificate in the Markets and
Management Program from Duke University and a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from Stanford University.
Mr. Ho is the son of Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles, the
Chairman of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina (50) has been an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since
2001. She is the managing director of Shun Tak Holdings
Limited, chief executive officer and director of Shun Tak-
China Travel Shipping Investments Limited, appointed
representative of a company, which is a corporate
director of Sociedade de Turismo e Diversdoes de Macau,
S.A.R.L., chairperson and executive director of MGM China
Holdings Limited, chairman of Macau Tower Convention
& Entertainment Centre, vice chairman of the board of
directors of Macau International Airport Company Limited
and executive director of Air Macau Company Limited. She
was previously a non-executive director of Qin Jia Yuan
Media Services Company Limited. Besides gearing her
efforts in business endeavors, Ms. Ho also serves on a host
of economic, social and public services. In mainland China,
such participation and services include being standing
committee member of Beijing Municipal Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, standing
committee member of All-China Federation of Industry and
Commerce and vice president of its Chamber of Tourism,
vice-chairperson of the China Society for Promotion of The
Guangcai Program. In Hong Kong, she serves as honorary
president of the Hong Kong Federation of Women and vice
chairperson of its council, founding honorary advisor and
director of The University of Hong Kong Foundation for
Educational Development and Research, and vice president
of The Hong Kong Girl Guides Association. In Macau, Ms.
Ho acts as committee member of The Government of Macau
SAR Tourism Development Committee and vice chairperson
of Macau Convention and Exhibition Association.
Internationally, Ms. Ho is a member of the board of UNDP
— Peace and Development Foundation, member of Sotheby’s
International Advisory Board and executive committee
member of the World Travel and Tourism Council. Ms. Ho
holds a Bachelor’s degree in marketing and international
business management from the University of Santa Clara.
She received an Honorary Doctorate Degree in Business
Administration from the Johnson and Wales University in
May 2007.
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Mr. King Richard Yun Zing (45) has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2004. He
is a managing director of investment banking at UBS
AG. He is principally responsible for providing corporate
finance services to clients in China and Hong Kong. He
has over 10 years of investment banking experience in
advising corporations, governments and entrepreneurs in
financing strategies. Previously, he was a senior member
of JP Morgan’s investment banking team in Asia, and was a
member of the board of directors of J.P. Morgan Securities
(Asia Pacific) Limited. Prior to joining JP Morgan, he held
senior positions at various renowned institutions including
Credit Lyonnais Securities Asia Limited and CITIC Pacific
Limited, a Hong Kong listed conglomerate. He holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics from Columbia University in
New York.

Mr. Lee Cho Jat (80) has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since 2005. In 1998,
Mr. Lee was awarded the “Silver Bauhinia Star” by The
Government of the HKSAR. He is now the president of
The Newspaper Society of Hong Kong, the president of
The Chinese Language Press Institute, permanent honorary
chairman of the Hong Kong Publishing Federation and
honorary chairman of Sino United Publishing (Holdings)
Limited, The Commercial Press (H.K.) Ltd. and Hong
Kong Commercial Newspapers Co., Ltd. Mr. Lee started his
career in newspaper publishing industry after graduated
from secondary school in 1952 and has over 50 years of
experience in the media industry devoting to promote
Chinese culture. Mr. Lee was awarded Outstanding
Achievement Award of Hong Kong Print Awards in 1997. Mr.
Lee successfully changed traditional state-owned companies
such as The Commercial Press (H.K.) Ltd., Joint Publishing
(Hong Kong) Company Limited, Chung Hwa Book Co.,
(H.K.) Ltd. and C&C Joint Printing Co., (H.K.) Ltd., into fast-
developing modernized international enterprises, which,
under his leadership, become paragons of the industry. Mr.
Lee was appointed a committee member of The Preliminary
Working Committee for The Preparatory Committee for the
HKSAR of The Standing Committee of The National People’s
Congress in 1994 and was further appointed as a member of
The Preparatory Committee for the HKSAR of The National
People’s Congress, participated in the preparation of the
establishment of The Government of the HKSAR. He was
appointed as a member of the Antiquities Advisory Board
of the HKSAR in 1999. Mr. Lee was appointed a member
of 8th, 9th and 10th National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. In 2009, Mr. Lee
has been elected the “Hundred of the Greats of Publishing
in the 60 years of New China” which is the greatest honor
in the publishing industry in China. Mr. Lee was granted an
Honorary Doctorate of Arts from Chu Hai College in July
2011.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Tung Chee Chen (70) has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since 2002. He is the
chairman, president and chief executive officer of Orient
Overseas (International) Limited. Mr. Tung graduated from
the University of Liverpool, England, where he received his
Bachelor of Science degree and acquired a Master’s degree
in Mechanical Engineering at the Massachusetts Institute
of Technology in the United States. Mr. Tung is also an
independent non-executive director of Wing Hang Bank,
Limited, BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited, Cathay Pacific
Airways Limited and U-Ming Marine Transport Corp. He
was previously an independent non-executive director of
PetroChina Company Limited and Zhejiang Expressway Co.,
Ltd.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

All the executive directors of the Company are respectively
responsible for the various aspects of the business and
operation of the Group. These executive directors of
the Company are regarded as the members of the senior
management team of the Group.
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TEERAMS

The Directors believe that good corporate governance
practices serve as an effective risk management for the
Company and hence, the shareholders of the Company will
benefit from the high standard of corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Former
Code”) and the Corporate Governance Code, which is
applicable to financial reports covering a period after 1
April 2012 (the “New Code”), contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The Company has complied with the
applicable code provisions set out in the Former Code
during the period from 1 January 2012 to 31 March 2012 as
well as the New Code during the period from 1 April 2012
to 31 December 2012 with deviations from certain code
provisions specified and explained below.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has made specific enquiries to all Directors who
have confirmed that, during the Year, they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2012, the Board consists of 13 directors
including 8 executive directors, 1 non-executive director and
4 independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”). Names
and biographical details of the Directors are set out under
the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 18 to 23.

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company. The Board reviews and approves the objectives,
strategies, direction and policies of the Group, the annual
budget and the management structure of the Company. The
Board also reviews the Group’s performance in light of the
Group’s objectives, business plans and budgets.

The Board has delegated the responsibility of the day-to-
day operations of the Group to the management of the
Company.

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles
and the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO”) of the Group is
Mr. Lo Wing Hung. The roles of the Chairman and the CEO
are separate. The Chairman is primarily responsible for the
management and effective performance of the Board. The
CEO is primarily responsible for the day-to-day management
of the business of the Group.
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All non-executive directors were appointed for a fixed term
ending on 31 December 2014 with renewal option subject to
retirement and re-election by rotation under the Bye-laws of
the Company.

In compliance with the code provision A.6.5, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development
(the “CPD”) to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company has adopted its own policy on
Directors’ CPD. During the Year, the Company encouraged
all Directors to attend or give speeches at training courses,
seminars or conferences which were relevant to their
respective duties and responsibilities at the Company’s
expenses, and provided relevant materials and updates for
their reading. According to the records provided by the
Directors, the Directors participated in the following CPD
programmes from 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012:

TEERMSE

B FRTEZZEHOREEEH  LHR-F
—ME+ZA=+—HB&IL EHEWE  TEE
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Type of CPD programmes

FESEXRREBERE
Giving
speeches at
Attending training
training courses,
courses, seminars or Reading
seminars or conferences materials
conferences REBHIRE or updates
HERZIRE . WISHEEH BIEAM R
Directors = MAERER BREH EHEHR
Executive Directors: HITEF .
Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles (Chairman) A7 E (F/E) v
Lo Wing Hung (CEO) E K (TTBCAEZL) 4
Judy Inn B ER 38 v
Jia Hongping T4 F v
Lai Ting Yiu TR v/ v
Lau Chung Man, Louis 2l v
Sy Wong Chor Fong MERE v
Yang Yiu Chong, Ronald Jeffrey 5 RN v
Non-Executive Director: FHHITESE -
Ho Kent Ching Tak Al Ef= v
INEDs: BULIFHTEF -
Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina ] %838 v
King Richard Yun Zing B ITTRK v
Lee Cho Jat b2 v 4
Tung Chee Chen BEK v v
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TEERAMS

Pursuant to rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Company
must, by 31 December 2012, appoint such number of INEDs
that represents at least one-third of the Board. Currently, the
Company has 4 INEDs which is just short of the one-third
requirement. The Company, after reasonable endeavour, has
not been able to identify suitable new candidate as an INED
of the Company, therefore additional time is required. The
Company shall endeavour to take appropriate measures as
soon as practicable to fulfil the requirement.

Attendance record of Directors in 2012 is set out below:

B EMRAIEI10AK  RARMBERZTE—=
FH+ZA=Z+—HHEZAEFELHEEEKE
AN =D —WNBIUIFERTES - ZIK’ATIEEET
BYRTEE ELPR=ZD2Z2—HBE AR
EHABEZNBIDAEDERES ?J*EZIK”AT%?’%
_LiFiﬂfTﬁ%E’Jﬂl“}\ E&m%%ﬁﬁl\ﬂﬁ'ﬁ%@Lm

o KR ENRDEE BT E TR
W%'Ié&ﬁééi%ﬁm °

TE-CFREENHELEET

Annual
Corporate General
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Governance Meeting
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee (“AGM”)
TEER RRBAEAE
g ENERE FMzES REZRE z8¢2 (RRBEFAE)
Number of meetings ZERITH
held in 2012 @M%{ 3 2 1 0 2 1
Directors B
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles (Chairman) — {1HE (£/E) 3 0
Lo Wing Hung (CEO) Bk (778 4) 3 1 - 1
Judy Tnn 7St 3 1
Jia Hongping BT 1 0
Lai Ting Yiu RiEE 3 1
Lau Chung Man, Louis 2 3 2 1
Sy Wong Chor Fong HEER 3 0
Yang Yiu Chong, Ronald Jeffrey BT 3 1
Non-Executive Director: FHTEE:
Ho Kent Ching Tak I 1 0
INEDs: BUFHITEE:
Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina a3 1 1 1 - 0
King Richard Yun Zing ST 1 2 1 - 0
Lee Cho Jat L 3 1 - 0
Tung Chee Chen RN 3 1
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The Board held 3 regular meetings instead of 4 as required
by the code provision A.1.1 for efficiency consideration
during the Year. The regular meetings were held to consider
and approve, among other things, the annual results, interim
results and annual budget of the Group.

According to the code provisions A.6.7 and E.1.2, the
Chairman of the Board and all non-executive directors of
the Company shall attend the AGM of the Company. The
Chairman of the Board and all non-executive directors
except Mr. TUNG Chee Chen were unable to attend the AGM
held in 2012 due to an unexpected business engagement.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a remuneration committee and its
terms of reference are available on both the Company and
the Stock Exchange websites. The Remuneration Committee
comprised 3 members and a majority of the members are
INEDs. The Committee is chaired by Ms. Ho Chiu King,
Pansy Catilina, with Mr. King Richard Yun Zing and Mr. Lo
Wing Hung as members.

The Committee has adopted the model (as described in the
code provision B.1.2(c)), for which the Committee shall
determine, with delegated responsibilities, the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management.

During the Year, the Committee approved the discretionary
bonus for the executive directors based on their
performances and the increment in their basic salary. The
emoluments of each of the Directors are set out in this
annual report on pages 104 to 105.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a nomination committee and its
terms of reference are available on both the Company and
the Stock Exchange websites. The Nomination Committee
comprised 4 members and a majority of the members are
INEDs. The Committee is chaired by Mr. Lee Cho Jat, with
Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina, Mr. King Richard Yun
Zing and Mr. Lo Wing Hung as members.

TERERRE

RARAEREGNERE  EFERAFERITT =R
EHEAMIETAMEXALIARENOR -EF
emEHERERMME (AT ERE)AEE 2
FERE THXEMNFERE -

RIBETAMRXAGCTREL2 EEEERRAAR
REIFATEFALRFARRZERBFRE - &
EEXIR REBRKEEINMEFVTESERA
AEBFAZAXERREMAELFEARAR =
T-_FROZERRBFRE -

N

EFRCKUFMEES  HBREEHNARF
REZ g - FMEZEem =% 84K - K&
DEEBVRBUFNTER -ZEFTERMAEE
Lt ZEBRETRTEREKELE -

ERATSFAEXBL200MMER - £ 8
SREFSERET EBEEEMNEEREREEA
g

RAFE ZECERSITESZRBNARS
CHIBTEAREIREZEAT € - SESZHE
TIE AR FREI042 1058

REZES

EXCCRVURARZES  HEEGKEHINARA
LB - REZEemmORZ AKX - A8
DEEVRBUFNTEZ -ZEFIERFTHE
L ZEREMBERLT - TR EE REKE
P

’

7l

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2012



Corporate Governance Report

TEERAMS

The Committee’s principal roles and functions are:

€]

(i)

(iii)

to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills,
and make recommendations on any proposed changes

knowledge and experience) of the Board

to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations

to the Board; and

to assess the independence of INEDs.

During the Year, there was no change in the composition of

the Board, and thus, no meeting was called.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Board has established a corporate governance

committee which comprises 2 members. The Committee is

chaired by Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis, with the Company

Secretary, Ms. Ip Ka Yee as a member.

The Committee’s principal roles and functions are:

)

(i

(iii)

(iv)

)

to develop, review, implement and monitor the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the
Board so as to comply with the legal and regulatory

requirements;

to review and monitor the training and CPD of
Directors;

to review the contribution required from a Director to
perform his/her responsibilities to the Company;

to develop, review, implement and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
Directors and employees; and

to review the Company’s annual Corporate Governance
Report.
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Corporate Governance Report

Summary of the work performed by the Committee during
the Year:

* Reviewed the annual Corporate Governance Report
contained in the Company’s 2011 annual report;

* Prepared materials and updates relevant to the
Company’s business for Directors’ reading in
compliance with the code provision A.6.5 on Directors’
CPD; and

*  Developed the Company’s policy and procedures for
disclosure of inside information because of the new
Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
effective on 1 January 2013 which has imposed
statutory obligation of disclosure of inside information
by listed corporations.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established an audit committee and its terms
of reference are available on both the Company and the
Stock Exchange websites. The Audit Committee comprised
3 members and all of them are INEDs. The Committee is
chaired by Mr. King Richard Yun Zing, with Ms. Ho Chiu
King, Pansy Catilina and Mr. Lee Cho Jat as members.

Summary of the work performed by the Committee during
the Year:

*  Reviewed the audited accounts for the year ended 31
December 2011;

*  Reviewed the interim report for the six months ended
30 June 2012; and

* Reviewed the internal audit reports including the
review and evaluation of internal controls.
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TERERRS

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the Year, the remuneration payable to the Group’s
external auditors, Messrs. Ernst & Young, is set out below:

e

RAERE - BT AEE 2 MR R K G
EHHF M ROT :

Fee payable

Services rendered RH 2R EREA
HK$°000

FHET

Audit services EiT R 4,719
Non-audit services JEE RS 249
Total &5t 4,968

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for each financial year which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and in presenting balanced and clear interim and annual
financial statements, other price-sensitive announcements
and other financial statements disclosures. The reporting
responsibilities of the external auditors are set out in this
annual report on pages 41 to 42.

The Board is responsible for the system of internal control
of the Group and reviews the effectiveness of the system of
internal control through the Audit Committee. The Internal
Audit Department independently reviewed the major
operating and financial control of the Group on an on-going
basis and covered all major operations of the Group on a
rotational basis. The Internal Audit Department reported
twice each year to the Audit Committee and the Directors
on significant findings on internal controls.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ip Ka Yee has been appointed as the Company Secretary
of the Company in place of Ms. Cheng Lai Chu with effect
from 14 September 2012. She is a full-time employee of the
Group, has day-to-day knowledge of the Company and has
complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company sets out the shareholders’ rights on:

(a)

)

How shareholders can convene a special general
meeting (the “SGM”)

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws and
section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as
amended) (the “Act”), shareholders holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
with voting right can submit a written requisition to
convene a SGM for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.

The written requisition must:

(i) state the purposes of the SGM,;

(i) be signed by the requisitionists (which may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by
one or more requisitionists); and

(iii) be deposited at the registered office of the
Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

Such SGM shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
SGM, the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a SGM.

How to put forward proposals at shareholders’” meetings
Pursuant to sections 79 and 80 of the Act, shareholders

can submit a written requisition to move a resolution at
a general meeting (the “GM”) if they:

(i) represent not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all shareholders having at the date
of the requisition a right to vote at the GM; or

(ii) are not less than 100 shareholders.
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The written requisition must:

D

(2

3

(€))

state the resolution, accompanied by a statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at the GM,;

be signed by the requisitionists (which may
be contained in one document or in several
documents in like form);

be deposited at the registered office of the
Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of the
Company Secretary not less than 6 weeks before
the GM in the case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution and not less than 1 week
before the GM in the case of any other requisition,
however, if after a copy of the requisition requiring
notice of a resolution has been deposited at the
registered office of the Company, a GM is called
for a date 6 weeks or less after the copy has been
deposited, the copy though not deposited within
the time required as referred to in the above shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for
the purposes thereof; and

be accompanied by a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
giving effect thereto.

How shareholders can propose a person for election as

a Director

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director

at a GM, please refer to the procedures available on

both the Company and the Stock Exchange websites.
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(d) How enquiries be put forward to the Board

The Company has already adopted an effective
and efficient way of receiving enquiries from its
shareholders through the corporate e-mail as well as
its principal office in Hong Kong and therefore, will
continue these channels of communication.

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board
by addressing them to the Company Secretary (whose
contact details are set out below). The Company
Secretary will properly forward the enquiries to the
Board for appropriate action:

The Company Secretary

Sing Tao News Corporation Limited

3/F., Sing Tao News Corporation Building,

3 Tung Wong Road, Shau Kei Wan, Hong Kong
Email: investor@singtaonewscorp.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the Year. The memorandum
of association and the bye-laws of the Company are
available on both the Company and the Stock Exchange
websites.
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Report of the Directors

EFETWE

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2012
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at
that date are set out in this annual report on pages 43 to
172.

The Directors recommend a final dividend of HK4.0
cents per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2012 payable on 23 May 2013 to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 15 May 2013. This recommendation has been
incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of
retained profits within the equity section of the statement
of financial position. Together with the interim dividend of
HK3.5 cents per ordinary share paid to shareholders on 20
September 2012, the total annual dividend will amount to
HK7.5 cents per ordinary share for the financial year (2011:
HK9.5 cents).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, is set out on page 176 of this annual report.
The summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Company and the Group, and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes
14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively. Further
details of the Group’s investment properties are set out on
pages 174 to 175 of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital
and share options during the year are set out in notes 32
and 33 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, the Company repurchased certain of
its shares on the Stock Exchange and these shares were
subsequently cancelled by the Company. Further details of
these transactions are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not redeemed,
and neither had the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 34(b) to
the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended), amounted
to approximately HK$775,978,000 (2011: approximately
HK$858,608,000), of which HK$33,509,000 has been
proposed as a final dividend for the year.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totalling HK$114,000.
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EFETWE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the aggregate amount of
revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
represented less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue.
The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers represented about 38% of the
Group’s total purchases and the purchase attributable to the
Group’s largest supplier was about 10% of the Group’s total
purchases.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, none of the
Directors or their associates or the shareholders (which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles

Ms. Judy Inn

Mr. Jia Hongping

Mr. Lai Ting Yiu

Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis

Mr. Lo Wing Hung

Mrs. Sy Wong Chor Fong

Mr. Yang Yiu Chong, Ronald Jeffrey

Non-executive director:
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak

Independent non-executive directors:
Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina

Mr. King Richard Yun Zing

Mr. Lee Cho Jat

Mr. Tung Chee Chen

According to bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Ho
Tsu Kwok, Charles, Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina, Mr.
Lai Ting Yiu, Mr. Tung Chee Chen and Mr. Yang Yiu Chong,
Ronald Jeffrey will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”). Mr.
Tung Chee Chen does not seek for re-election. Mr. Ho Tsu
Kwok, Charles, Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina, Mr. Lai
Ting Yiu and Mr. Yang Yiu Chong, Ronald Jeffrey being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.
Details of the Directors’ standing for re-election are set out
in the circular to the shareholders sent together with this
annual report.
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Report of the Directors

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina, Mr.
King Richard Yun Zing, Mr. Lee Cho Jat and Mr. Tung Chee
Chen and considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 18 to 23 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings of the Company every year. Other
emoluments are determined and approved by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements,
none of the Directors had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, in any contracts of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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EFETWE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2012, the interests of the Directors in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”) were as follows:

EEER

RZE——F+-_A=+—H EFRARQFZ2K
HBREREEEROT BEREESFLPEERN ([F
HFREEIED]) E3525FBE 2 B MATR 822 1
BT

Number of ordinary shares held, Percentage

capacity and nature of interest of the

FEEEREE SO RERME Company’s

Personal Corporate issued

Name of director Notes interests interests Total share capital

EAEAFE

BITRA

EEns Hit BAER AL £ By ZEDH

Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles Al LR 5 A (@)) - 426,197,500 426,197,500 50.89%

Ms. Judy Inn k22 + 1,300,000 - 1,300,000 0.15%

Mr. Jia Hongping B FnAE 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 0.23%

Mr. Lai Ting Yiu REM S E 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 0.23%

Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis Bk E 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 0.23%

Mrs. Sy Wong Chor Fong MERF XL @) 1,202,000 81,959,500 83,161,500 9.93%

Mr. Yang Yiu Chong,

Ronald Jeffrey THIRR A& 1,350,000 - 1,350,000 0.16%

Notes: Wi -

(1) Of these shares, 424,948,000 and 1,249,500 shares were
held by Luckman Trading Limited (“Luckman”) and Yosham
Limited, respectively, which were beneficially owned by
Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles.

(2) The corporate interests of 81,959,500 shares were held
by Stagelight Group Limited (“Stagelight”), which was
beneficially owned by Mrs. Sy Wong Chor Fong.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the Directors had any
interest and short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the share option schemes disclosures
in note 33 to the financial statements, at no time during
the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any of the Directors or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights
in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2012, those persons, other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had the
interests of 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, were as
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follows:

Percentage

of the

Capacity Number of Company’s

and nature ordinary issued

Name Notes of interest shares held share capital

EARQE

3703 g EBRTREZ

=L #at EEME EEREE Aot

Luckman D Beneficial owner 424,948,000 50.75%
BEEEAA

Hong Kong Tobacco Company &BEEAFR AR @) Deemed interest 424,948,000 50.75%
Limited (“HK Tobacco”) ([HEEE]) BRER 2 EE

Stagelight 3 Beneficial owner 81,959,500 9.78%
BEEEAA

FIL Limited Investment manager 50,310,000 6.00%

A& E
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Notes:

(1) The interests of Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles, held through
a controlled corporation, duplicate with those disclosed in
the section “Directors’ interests” above.

(2) Pursuant to an option agreement dated 20 June 2001 and
seven supplemental agreements entered into between
Luckman and HK Tobacco on 19 July 2002, 19 July 2003,
19 July 2006, 19 July 2007, 19 July 2008, 19 July 2010 and
19 July 2012, respectively, HK Tobacco was granted an
option to purchase from Luckman 33,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company. Under Sections 317 and 318 of
the SFO, HK Tobacco is deemed to be interested in all
the 424,948,000 ordinary shares of the Company held by
Luckman.

(3) The interests of Mrs. Sy Wong Chor Fong, held through a
controlled corporation, duplicate with those disclosed in
the section “Directors’ interests” above.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company had not been
notified of any other interests or short positions being held
by any person in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was
held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their

reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed
at the AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2013
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Ernst & Young
22/F CITIC Tower

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= ik

Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2846 9888
Fax: +852 2868 4432
www.ey.com

To the shareholders of Sing Tao News Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sing Tao News Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
43 to 172, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
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Ell ERNST & YOUNG
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To the shareholders of Sing Tao News Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (continued)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
26 March 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement

AR e W am

Jear ended 31 December 2012 #BZE - F— —F+-H=+—HIFFZE

Notes 2012 2011
Hrat —B--fF —F——%F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHT
REVENUE A 5 2,210,908 2,390,903
Cost of sales SHE AR (1,506,170) (1,644,501)
Gross profit EH 704,738 746,402
Other income and gains H A A R Hz= 5 35,862 13,717
Distribution costs 53 88 B A (297,888) (281,517)
Administrative expenses THRX (321,866) (319,044)
Other expenses H b (14,388) (14,120)
Finance costs & AR 6 (598) (537
Share of profits and losses of: JEE T HARE A R EE
Jointly-controlled entities FREE A A 44,914 25,814
An associate — 5% & D A (5,792) (24,801)
Impairment of amounts due from JRE W $E[R] #22 1l & B SR IERL(E
jointly-controlled entities 19 (2,767) (7,440)
Loss on disposal of an investment HE—RMELE a2
in an associate "EWNEE 20 (6,433) -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RR B AR R 7 135,782 138,474
Income tax credit/(expense) FIEBER, (FAX) 10 (15,667) 153
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REFEHEF 120,115 138,627
Attributable to: AT AL
Owners of the Company RARHE A 11 120,229 138,668
Non-controlling interests FEE R (114) 41
120,115 138,627
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE EA T EZEBEREZFE AEMN
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS FREF — OBL)
OF THE COMPANY - (HK cents) 13
Basic A 14.31 15.94
Diluted &y 14.17 15.60

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year
are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.

FRAFERERMNBREREZRENFBEYBF
KM 120 IR TR o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

re T HER S

Year ended 31 December 2012 BE - F— —F+-H=+—HIFFE

Notes 2012 2011
it —E--F —T——F
HK$’°000 HK$°000
FET FET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REFEHEF 120,115 138,627
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hit 2 E W=
Gains on property revaluation )% & e 14 29,302 11,944
Income tax effect g fis & (7,654) (2,880)
21,648 9,064
Available-for-sale investments: AR ERE
Changes in fair value N EE 21 110 1,017
Income tax effect Frisfisg & - -
110 1,017
Exchange differences on translation BREBINEEHE N Z5
of foreign operations 6,545 (4,005)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REAFTFEAtGMEZEKRRFE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 28,303 6,076
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEXEHKEARE
FOR THE YEAR 148,418 144,703
Attributable to: LATR AT FE(S -
Owners of the Company VN/NESIE RN 148,532 144,744
Non-controlling interests FEE IR M A (114) (41)
148,418 144,703
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Notes 2012 2011
Hizt —g-—5 T —
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WEREE 14 760,946 760,839
Investment properties WEME 15 44,180 38,304
Goodwill Bk 16 857 857
Other intangible assets B EE 17 10,586 11,712
Investments in jointly-controlled entities 7 £ F#E $I A 7] 2 & & 19 142,766 138,202
Investment in an associate R—EEERa 2% E 20 - 42,267
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 21 30,047 44,559
Deposit for an investment KA & 22 27,443 27,443
Deferred tax assets EEMIBEE 31 11,494 13,027
Other deposits paid BEME#ike 31,829 21,847
Total non-current assets FMEBEEBE 1,060,148 1,099,057
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories "BE 23 95,039 97,995
Trade receivables JiE UK BR 5K 24 531,014 561,531
Prepayments, deposits and TR RIE - Tﬁi
other receivables H th i W3k 25 46,156 47,865
Financial assets at fair value through &/AWEHE)\TE iR 2
profit or loss W EE 26 68,423 48,314
Tax recoverable A Uk [B] % 18 11,628 5,902
Cash and cash equivalents e kR4S EER 27 611,783 540,008
Total current assets MEBEERE 1,364,043 1,301,615
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade and bills payables FERTRER R RE 28 112,794 134,920
Other payables and accruals Eh JE T 5RIE KR EF FRIE 29 252,413 250,057
Tax payable JE T 118 55,617 62,471
Finance lease and hire purchase BMEHNREESLQ
contract payables FE At FRIE 30 862 1,121
Total current liabilities REBAEGELE 421,686 448,569
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 942,357 853,046
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ERABEREZ
LIABILITIES EEHE 2,002,505 1,952,103
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Notes 2012 2011
k23 —E-—F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TFHT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ERRBEEZ
LIABILITIES EE#RE 2,002,505 1,952,103
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Finance lease and hire purchase EEELN REEE L
contract payables FEFRIE 30 3,130 2,683
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIBEE 31 48,302 40,885
Total non-current liabilities B AEBE 51,432 43,568
Net assets BEFE 1,951,073 1,908,535
EQUITY % ¥
Equity attributable to owners RN AIER A AL I
of the Company
Issued capital BEEITRA 32 167,466 173,806
Reserves Gk 1,749,902 1,692,555
Proposed final dividend EZEAHKE 12 33,509 41,864
1,950,877 1,908,225
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR = 196 310
Total equity it e s 1,951,073 1,908,535
Lo Wing Hung Lau Chung Man, Louis
& K i 8l {h 3z
Director Director
BF EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2012 #Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

=AY
AR A

=T

E / ~ n\l:m\

—EFE - FSf A= HUFE

N7

EE) xR

KRARAARS
Available-
Issued for-sale
ordinary Share Share Asset investment  Exchange Proposed Non-
share  premium Contributed  option revaluation revaluation fluctuation Other  Retained final controlling Total
Notes capital  account  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserves  profits  dividend Total  interests equity
B&f THHE
EER ki BhE K2 REEH 3 fiR #ER
it Bx  REE 4ARR B EfER BE  ROEE EERE REEW ABRE &3t BE RE4E
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKSO00 — HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
AT TEr  TEx  TET  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr Tk
(Note 32)  (Note 32) (Note 34(a))
W) Wi Winw)
At1 January 2011 nZ5--5-5-1 174023 LA 38 0,744 07,030 4610 40418 19.960 1,050,602 B3I 1849144 PL 184949
Proft for the year KEZEH - - - - - - - 138,668 - 138668 ) B
Other comprehensive income for the year: £ M 2ENE :
Gains on property revaluation UEEL) - - - - 9,064 - - - - - 9,064 - 9,064
Changes in fair value of available- THHEREATERY:
for-sale investments, net of tax il - - - - - 1017 - - - - 1017 - 1017
Exchange differences on translation BEBNSRMELEE
of foreign operations - - - - - - (4,00) - - - (4,005) - (4,005)
Total comprehensive income for the year — £F 2 ANEHEE - - - - 9,064 07 4005 - 138068 - 1474 144703
Repurchase of shares EELO) 3 570 (4560) - - - - - - - Gy - G
Issue of ordinary shares Ak 3 30 197 - (770) - - - - - - 1507 - 1507
Equity-setled share option arrangements M%”%Mﬂk 33 - - - 014 - - - - - - 014 - 014
Final 2010 dividend declared - - - - - - - - 6D @51 B8 - (B8
Interim 2011 dividend 12 - - - - - - - - -3 AL
Proposed final 2011 dividend 12 - - - - - - - - (804 41864 -
At 31 December 2011 and
at 1 January 2012 173,806 0 4B38s 9,588 76,094 5,007 30413 19960 1,108,256 41864 1,908,225 30 1908535
Profit for the year - - - - - - 120229 - 1029 (119 120115
Other comprehensive income for the year: % H‘Mﬂkm
Gains on property revaluation UEEL)E - - - - 648 - - - - - 68 -8
Changes in fair value of available- THHEREATERS:
for-sale investments, net of tax NBRE - - - - - 10 - - - - 110 - 10
Exchange differences on translation BEBNSHMELEE
of foreign operations - - - - - - 0,545 - - - 0545 - 0545
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ EF2EHEAE - - - - 648 110 6,345 - 1029 - 18R (14) 148418
Repurchase of shares EERO) 3 (6400 (28 (59%) - - - - - - - (B0 - (35200
Issue of ordinary shares BrEak 3 0 25 (46) - - - - - - 2 - 2
Fquity-settled share option arrangements ~ RELERRERH 3% - - - 0 - - - - - - 10 - 0
Final 2011 dividend declared BER-F--FXERE 1 - - - - - - - - - L) (869 - (86
Interim 2012 dividend ZEhERE 12 - - - - - - - - (3 -3 - @3
Proposed final 2012 dividend RE-E-2FA8RS 1 - - - - - - - - B339 B - - -
Transfer upon disposal of a then associate  HEEE-HEERAREL - - - -6 - - - 51 - - - -
At 31 December 2012 HZE-ZEtZR=t-R 167466 142 4078000 9804 92031 STEF 42058 19960 LTI 33509 1950877 196 1,951,073
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated * EEREEPBR THREVBMRAIEXZHRD
R B 1,749,902, ooo,%n (ZF——%F:

reserves of HK$1,749,902,000 (2011: HK$1,692,555,000)
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

W

[m=)
1,692,555, 0003 7T) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

,\\/T\/\fﬁi //ILE%%

Year ended 31 December 2012 BE - F— —F+-H=+—HIFFE

Notes 2012 2011
it —E--F —T——F
HKS$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBCHERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 7% A1 g 7 135,782 138,474
Adjustments for: EEHR THIFE
Finance costs RN 6 598 537
Impairment of amounts due from JE Y R 2 A
jointly-controlled entities BE 2,767 7,440
Share of profits and losses of FE G F R 2 A 72 5 F
jointly-controlled entities N E51E (44,914) (25,814)
Share of profits and losses of FEAE — B & A Rl Z2m
an associate N B 5,792 24,801
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—EBE AR 2 ER 6,433 -
Bank interest income RITH B HA 5 (5,062) (4,426)
Investment income wEWA 5 (3,105) (631)
Dividend income from listed equity KB EMBRAEE ZKRE
investments WA 5 (1,988) (1,859)
Dividend income from an unlisted E—IHFLmAHEE
available-for-sale investment WE Z R EWA 5 (78) (2,893)
Fair value losses/(gains), net on: NEEEE (s 2 %8
Financial assets at fair value BAFELEAEBREZ
through profit or loss MBEE 5 (2,565) 17,684
Derivative financial instruments — MELBMIAE-1ITTE
transactions not qualifying HHER RS
as hedges 5 (1,274) 1,320
Impairment losses on AHEHERERBERRE
available-for-sale investments 7 10,668 9,000
Gain on disposal of items of LEMX BWERZEB
property, plant and equipment BB 2 Wz 5 (56) (43D
Depreciation e 7 82,124 80,370
Revaluation surplus on land and T REFEE R
buildings 7 - (1,528)
Changes in fair values of investment BEMENFEE
properties 7 (5,170) (1,643)
Amortisation of intangible assets mEESN 7 1,126 1,125
Impairment of trade receivables JE U BR ORI (B 7 2,595 4,828
Equity-settled share option expense REGEBERERS 7 262 614
183,935 246,968
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2012 2011
—E——fF —F—F
HKS$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEBZRESRE (B)
ACTIVITIES (continued)
Decrease in inventories FERLD 2,956 9,201
Decrease/(increase) in trade FEUCHR ZX - TR RIB
receivables, prepayments, & & H fth JE W IR
deposits and other receivables () 29,573 (42,286)
Increase in financial assets at fair BAFEZABRRE ZHE
value through profit or loss BEEM (17,544) (7,344)
Decrease/(increase) in derivative PTEEBMIT AR, (M)
financial instruments 1,274 (1,320)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills  JEfTERFA KL R - EMER
payables, and other payables and TRIE N EET RUIR
accruals i, Ol ) (19,839) 1,309
Cash generated from operations KEEBFEARS 180,355 206,588
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERBBENEN (22,854) (7,659
Overseas tax paid BB INE IR (3,850) (12,270)
Net cash flows from operating KEXBEECRERE
activities F R 153,651 186,659

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2012




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2012 # 2 —ZF—

SEFZASF—AILFE

Note 2012 2011
it —E--F —T——F
HKS$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REXBZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 B 5,062 4,426
Investment income wEWA 3,105 631
Dividends received from REHEES AR Z
jointly-controlled entities 2R B 47,415 7,752
Dividends received from listed equity KB EMRAIKRE 2
investments 2 U B 1,988 1,859
Dividends received from an unlisted KE—IEIFLTAHEE
available-for-sale investment wWEZBEWRE 78 2,893
Capital refund from an unlisted RE—IE LTI HLERE
available-for-sale investment FEERD 1,500 -
Purchases of items of property, BEWE BEMREEE
plant and equipment (29,930) (115,807)
Deposits paid for purchases of items HEEWHE - BFE K& EER
of property, plant and equipment ZERES (31,829) (21,847)
Proceeds from disposal of items of LEYE WERREBEE
property, plant and equipment Fr 8 5k 18 3,187 8,218
Increase in amounts due from JE M TR 9% 1 R R R IB G N
jointly-controlled entities (7,233) (1,133)
Decrease/(increase) in an amount due J&UK — A & 2 B 5018
from an associate () 15,983 (5,561)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate & — [ & A 7 2 FT15 A 14,059 -
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary & — K B2 7215 3RIE 35 - -
Purchase of an available-for-sale BE-—BAHLEERE
investment - (2,454)
Increase in non-pledged time deposits RESKE|BIABB=EA 2
with original maturity of more than AR E B ROE N
three months when acquired (44,016) (27,132)
Net cash flows used in investing WEEBER 2R REFE
activities (20,631) (148,155)
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Year ended 31 December 2012 &,

meRenER

AP CE——Ff A=+ —HIFFE

Notes 2012 2011
Bt it —E-—F —E——
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METBZ2HERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 217 % MB% TS 5IE 32 229 1,507
Repurchase of ordinary shares A O] 3B AR 32 (35,200) (5,123)
Capital element of finance lease rental B&EMHAEK 2 E X
payments =iv) (3,657) (6,711)
Interest paid 27 B 6 (488) (401)
Interest element of finance lease rental B & LB Z 7B
payments &t 6 (110) (136)
Dividends paid 2IRRE (71,171) (82,661)
Net cash flows used in financing BREEESTRCEAS
activities B FEE (110,397) (93,525)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH REREE&ZEEAE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #in, OBd) BE 22,623 (55,021)
Cash and cash equivalents at FzBEekReEE
beginning of year HH 502,652 555,782
Effect of foreign exchange rate X EFA
changes, net 5,136 1,891
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERZBESRBESESE
AT END OF YEAR EHH 530,411 502,652
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERAESEEBEBER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i
Cash and bank balances Re MIRITHEHK 27 348,687 368,821
Non-pledged time deposits EIKR T BT K 27 263,096 171,187
Cash and cash equivalents as stated B IR R AT e IR &
in the statement of kReEHEIER
financial position 611,783 540,008
Non-pledged time deposits with REGERIIHRBER=EA
original maturity of more than Z AR E B R
three months when acquired (81,372) (37,356)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated ReERERAMLHIREE K
in the statement of cash flows ReFMBEEE 530,411 502,652
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Notes 2012 2011
k23 —E--F —T——F
HKS$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WEREE 14 3,820 3,600
Investments in subsidiaries R BRARIZEE 18 950,226 1,067,878
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 954,046 1,071,478
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other BRFIE - RER
receivables b fE W SRR 25 1,774 1,453
Cash and bank balances IR & MIR1T 45 8 27 5,832 1,011
Total current assets nBEEMLE 7,606 2,464
CURRENT LIABILITIES pR=R
Other payables and accruals Eh JiE < 5RIE & FE 5T R IE 29 5,379 6,556
Total current liabilities nBBEEE 5,379 6,556
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) REBEE (AE) FE 2,227 (4,092)
Net assets BESE 956,273 1,067,386
EQUITY i B8
Issued capital BEITR A 32 167,466 173,800
Reserves 1 34(b) 755,298 851,716
Proposed final dividend EEAHRKRE 12 33,509 41,864
Total equity i 7 42 58 956,273 1,067,386

Lo Wing Hung
& K i
Director

EF
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sing Tao News Corporation Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the
following principal activities:

*  media

e property holding

* trading of photographic products
* investment holding

In the opinion of the directors, Luckman Trading
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, is the Company’s controlling shareholder.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties, leasehold land and buildings,
derivative financial instruments and certain investments,
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.
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EENEEEERAAAEEREETMAK
UZEBRAR - ARB zEMPEEELMR
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda °

AEBEFAREZIEXZBNOT

- K
- VERSB

- BESRVES

- REEK

EERANREBELESFMAKS ZLuckman
Trading Limited 278 A & 2 R R -

mE 2 B

MEBRDREBZLESMAE ([FEES
fiRg]) BB EMBREE (EERM
BRELEL]) (ENMBEMEEEVHREE
Al A ER ((BESER]) ka2l
e ANAEBELREHRIREFERF
Pl 2 WERE - B H MR T AE LR AE
e MHEREYME HELHEET 142
MTARETRENDEAFESE - ABHK
HERABT(BT)) 25 = BERAEI -
PrESBEDNRAAE T -
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.1. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1.RB > H¥E ()

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2012. The financial statements of
the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised gains
and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is
attributed to the non-controlling interest even if it
results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers
of Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income
Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKAS 12 Amendments

Other than as further explained below regarding the
impact of amendments to HKAS 12, the adoption of the
revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect
on these financial statements.

The HKAS 12 Amendments clarify the determination
of deferred tax for investment property measured at
fair value and introduce a rebuttable presumption
that deferred tax on investment property measured
at fair value should be determined on the basis
that its carrying amount will be recovered through
sale. Furthermore, the amendments incorporate the
requirement previously in HK(SIC)-Int 21 Income Taxes
— Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets that
deferred tax on non-depreciable assets, measured using
the revaluation model in HKAS 16, should always be
measured on a sale basis. Prior to the adoption of the
amendments, deferred tax with respect to the Group’s
investment properties was provided on the basis that
the carrying amount will be recovered through use, and
accordingly the profits tax rate had been applied to the
calculation of deferred tax arising on the revaluation of
the Group’s investment properties. Upon the adoption
of HKAS 12 Amendments, deferred tax in respect of
the Group’s investment properties is provided on the
presumption that the carrying amount will be recovered
through sale. The adoption of the amendments did not
have any significant impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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2.3. ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKEFRS 9

HKEFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

HKFRS 13
HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)
HKAS 27 (2011)
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Government
Loans’

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities*

Financial Instruments*

Consolidated Financial Statements®

Joint Arrangements*

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities’

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12 - Transition
Guidance’

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011) - Investment
Entities’

Fair Value Measurement*

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements —
Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income'

Employee Benefits*

Separate Financial Statements*

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures*

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine*

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
issued in June 2012’
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3. ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

1  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2015

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require an entity to
disclose information about rights to set-off and
related arrangements (e.g., collateral agreements). The
disclosures would provide users with information that is
useful in evaluating the effect of netting arrangements
on an entity’s financial position. The new disclosures
are required for all recognised financial instruments
that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures also apply
to recognised financial instruments that are subject to
an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement, irrespective of whether they are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments from 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of
phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an
entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on the
basis of both the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to
improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of HKAS 39.
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2.3. ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to
HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”)
and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of HKAS 39. Most
of the Additions were carried forward unchanged
from HKAS 39, while changes were made to the
measurement of financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss using the fair value option
(“FVO”). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of
change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable
to changes in credit risk must be presented in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”). The remainder of
the change in fair value is presented in profit or loss,
unless presentation of the fair value change in respect
of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
However, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts which have been designated under the FVO
are scoped out of the Additions.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its
entirety. Before this entire replacement, the guidance
in HKAS 39 on hedge accounting and impairment of
financial assets continues to apply. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2015. The Group will
quantify the effect in conjunction with other phases,
when the final standard including all phases is issued.

HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that
applies to all entities including special purpose entities
or structured entities. It includes a new definition of
control which is used to determine which entities
are consolidated. The changes introduced by HKFRS
10 require management of the Group to exercise
significant judgement to determine which entities are
controlled, compared with the requirements in HKAS
27 and HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities. HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that
addresses the accounting for consolidated financial
statements. It also addresses the issues raised in
HK(SIC)-Int 12. Based on the preliminary analyses
performed, HKFRS 10 is not expected to have any
impact on the currently held investments of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3. ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
and HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Nomn-
Monetary Contributions by Venturers. It describes the
accounting for joint arrangements with joint control. It
addresses only two forms of joint arrangements, i.e.,
joint operations and joint ventures, and removes the
option to account for joint ventures using proportionate
consolidation.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements
for subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities previously included in HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, HKAS
31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS 28 Investments
in Associates. It also introduces a number of new
disclosure requirements for these entities.

In July 2012, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS
10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 which clarify the transition
guidance in HKFRS 10 and provide further relief from
full retrospective application of these standards, limiting
the requirement to provide adjusted comparative
information to only the preceding comparative period.
The amendments clarify that retrospective adjustments
are only required if the consolidation conclusion as to
which entities are controlled by the Group is different
between HKFRS 10 and HKAS 27 or HK(SIC)-Int 12 at
the beginning of the annual period in which HKFRS 10
is applied for the first time. Furthermore, for disclosures
related to unconsolidated structured entities, the
amendments will remove the requirement to present
comparative information for periods before HKFRS 12 is
first applied.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 issued in December
2012 include a definition of an investment entity and
provide an exception to the consolidation requirement
for entities that meet the definition of an investment
entity. Investment entities are required to account
for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in
accordance with HKFRS 9 rather than consolidate them.
Consequential amendments were made to HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS 12
also set out the disclosure requirements for investment
entities. The Group expects that these amendments will
not have any impact on the Group as the Company is
not an investment entity as defined in HKFRS 10.
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2.3. ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27
and HKAS 28 as a result of the issuance of HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12. The Group expects to adopt
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (2011),
HKAS 28 (2011), and the subsequent amendments to
these standards issued in July and December 2012 from
1 January 2013.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value
and a single source of fair value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across HKFRSs. The
standard does not change the circumstances in which
the Group is required to use fair value, but provides
guidance on how fair value should be applied where
its use is already required or permitted under other
HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 13
prospectively from 1 January 2013.

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items
presented in OCI. Items that could be reclassified (or
recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time
(for example, net gain on hedge of a net investment,
exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations, net movement on cash flow hedges and
net loss or gain on available-for-sale financial assets)
would be presented separately from items which will
never be reclassified (for example, actuarial gains
and losses on defined benefit plans and revaluation
of land and buildings). The amendments will affect
presentation only and have no impact on the financial
position or performance. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments from 1 January 2013.

HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments that
range from fundamental changes to simple clarifications
and re-wording. The revised standard introduces
significant changes in the accounting for defined
benefit pension plans including removing the choice
to defer the recognition of actuarial gains and losses.
Other changes include modifications to the timing of
recognition for termination benefits, the classification of
short-term employee benefits and disclosures of defined
benefit plans. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 19
(2011) from 1 January 2013.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3. ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to setoff”
for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities.
The amendments also clarify the application of the
offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement systems
(such as central clearing house systems) which apply
gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous.
The amendments are not expected to have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group
upon adoption on 1 January 2014.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011
Cycle issued in June 2012 sets out amendments to a
number of HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2013. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. While the
adoption of some of the amendments may result
in changes in accounting policies, none of these
amendments are expected to have a significant financial
impact on the Group. Those amendments that are
expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s
policies are as follows:

(a) HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Clarifies the difference between voluntary
additional comparative information and the
minimum required comparative information.
Generally, the minimum required comparative
period is the previous period. An entity must
include comparative information in the related
notes to the financial statements when it
voluntarily provides comparative information
beyond the previous period. The additional
comparative information does not need to contain
a complete set of financial statements.

In addition, the amendments clarifies that the
opening statement of financial position as at
the beginning of the preceding period must be
presented when an entity changes its accounting
policies; makes retrospective restatements or makes
reclassifications, and that change has a material
effect on the statement of financial position.
However, the related notes to the opening
statement of financial position as at the beginning
of the preceding period are not required to be
presented.
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2.3. ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 23.CEMENAEMNE BIHIEREE]

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b) HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation:
Clarifies that income taxes arising from distribution
to equity holders are accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 12 Income Taxes. The amendment
removes existing income tax requirements from
HKAS 32 and requires entities to apply the
requirements in HKAS 12 to any income tax arising
from distributions to equity holders.

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
operates as a separate entity in which the Group and
the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture and the
basis on which the assets are to be realised upon its
dissolution. The profits or losses from the joint venture’s
operations and any distributions of surplus assets are
shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their
respective capital contributions, or in accordance with
the terms of the joint venture agreement.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures (continued)
A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not
have unilateral control, but has joint control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral
or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly,
generally not less than 20% of the joint venture’s
registered capital and is in a position to exercise
significant influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or
indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture’s
registered capital and has neither joint control of,
nor is in a position to exercise significant influence
over, the joint venture.

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is
subject to joint control, resulting in none of the
participating parties having unilateral control over the
economic activity of the jointly-controlled entity.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4. TESHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Jointly-controlled entities (continued)

The Group’s investments in jointly-controlled entities
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The
Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of jointly-controlled entities is included in
the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Where the profit sharing ratio is
different from the Group’s equity interest, the share of
post-acquisition results of the jointly-controlled entities
is determined based on the agreed profit sharing ratio.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its jointly-controlled entities are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the jointly-controlled entities, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
jointly-controlled entities is included as part of the
Group’s investments in jointly-controlled entities.

Associate

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or
a jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position
to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments
are made to bring in line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results and reserves of an associate is
included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associate are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s investment in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of an associate is included as part
of the Group’s investment in an associate and is not
individually tested for impairment.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability that is a financial instrument and within
the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value either recognised in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If
the contingent consideration is not within the scope
of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4. TESHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Business combination and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the disposed operation and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, investment properties and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to sell,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other
than goodwill and certain financial assets is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a); and

(vid) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
income statement in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the
values of property, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the
total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit,
on an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit
is charged to the income statement. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the income statement
to the extent of the deficit previously charged. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of
the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as
a movement in reserves.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4. TESHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Leasehold land

Not depreciated

Over the shorter of the lease
terms or 2% to 5%

Buildings 2% to 5%

Plant and machinery 6% to 50%

Over the shorter of the lease
terms or 20% to 33%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures, 10% to 30%
equipment and others
Motor vehicles 20% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the income
statement in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income
statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives represent
purchased data library, copyrights, trademarks and
domain names which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of 10 to 20
years.

B 75 g 2} BT =t

37 December 2012 —F——F+-H=+—H

24 T EETHRBE (B

REWME

REMERNFHERDEAS WA R HER
gE(MEARERLEESRBEERIRBE L
THEM AFEEXHEBREPHEZ LR
BT (BRARENEREVEERZ
MERBRKEHEMFH A CHERER) - %F
MENTUARE (BRERXZFEA) 5K o R
THERE  REVEARRRBEHRZ TR
ZRFEFIRR

REMEZAFEZEIMELEZAE @ 5T A
PREAFEZWER -

BESHEREVEZEMAE  EREL D
EFERERBERTER -

BREEE (BERM)

BRES BT E E 1) A TR A I A ARG
B -ERAHTPRENELEENKNAZTERE
BEANAFE BREEAERFHFG
RERLER FHERZEVEEHRIZA
ERFHAEE YFERETANRBRET
BEFMELRARBE AERFHERZELE
EZBHFHRRBHETZELREVRFE
K@ —IR »

ERAFEAFHCEFEEREMBAZER
FE - R - BRI AR AN E AT R
EEEYIER - WA RS ARG A E 810
E20FHH -

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2012




Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 g R BT 5E

37 December 2012 —F——F+-H=+—H

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4. TESHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life
represents a motor vehicle registration mark, which
is tested for impairment annually individually. Such
intangible asset is not amortised. The useful life of
an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
income statement so as to provide a constant periodic
rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited
to the income statement on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under the operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at
fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
income statement. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria under
HKAS 39 are satisfied.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (held for trading) to assess
whether the intent to sell them in the near term is still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets and management’s intent to sell them in the
foreseeable future significantly changes, the Group
may elect to reclassify them. The reclassification from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
to loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial
assets or held-to-maturity investments depends on the
nature of the assets. This evaluation does not affect
any financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss using the fair value option at designation,
as these instruments cannot be reclassified after initial
recognition.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2012

24 TEETHRBE (&)

RERHMMBEE (&)
B FELDA BRI HEEE

BAVYEL A ABRR Y BEERRFIEE
BEZUBEERRVTERARHEER A FE
EABGRZMBEE WBAMBEENS
ERBALE AN EABEEE - TATA
(BREMNRATETLR) IO BARIEER
MIBEE  HRIEERE BT ERIE395R A
FEEE M TAE BRI o

BoFETCABaRZVBEEEYBRR
RARFEAR  FEAFEFEPHERER
hHER c AT EESFETEEMNRFYHE
E RIS HAE - ERET XA
BRI AR | BURTER -

RAMEEB G ERFIORNEFE - EIHA
BRREEREAVFECABRZR BB E
EFAENGERAFEE/BRAFELAR

AEBGHEERATVECABRERZVB
BE (KFEE)  WFERIOHEENER
EEMAGHE - EWMPIBERAT  EWMHNEE
BYAREEELEEZSTUMBEEREERE
ERRSREENERLRENNLE  KNEE
AREEESEENH ARAFELCARRER
ZHMBEEEDBERERMBNE - A H
EMBEEIRBEEI NN ERREERT
BEUEME - ZEMEEEAEEREAFE
EABSRIMBEEYEZE  ARZET
BERVIAHER R TEEEHN DM -



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value
if their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not held for trading or designated
at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the income statement.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the income statement. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in the income statement
in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for
receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated at
fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this
category are those which are intended to be held for
an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4. TESHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the income statement in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to
the income statement in other expenses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income
and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the income statement as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets and management’s intent to do
so significantly changes in the foreseeable future, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted
when the financial assets meet the definition of loans
and receivables and the Group has the intent and
ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future
or to maturity. Reclassification to the held-to-maturity
category is permitted only when the Group has the
ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of the
financial asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

*  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

* the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4. TESHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognised in the income statement. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
other expenses in the income statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset
that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses
on these assets are not reversed.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4. TESHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the income statement, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment below its cost. The determination of what
is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that investment previously recognised in the income
statement — is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through the income
statement. Increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available
for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the income statement. Future interest
income continues to be accrued based on the reduced
carrying amount of the asset and is accrued using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The
interest income is recorded as part of finance income.
Impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed
through the income statement if the increase in fair
value of the instruments can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the income statement.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39
are classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines
the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, derivative financial instruments, and finance
lease and hire purchase contract payables.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4. TESHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in
the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group that
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the income statement. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in the income
statement does not include any interest charged on
these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in
HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period; and (i) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4. TESHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded
in active markets is determined by reference to quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price
for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs. For
financial instruments where there is no active market,
the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the
current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis;
option pricing models; and other valuation models.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group invests in certain derivative financial
instruments, such as forward currency contracts and
equity and commodity contracts, for trading purposes.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities
when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of

derivatives are taken directly to the income statement.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the actual
cost, first-in, first-out basis or weighted average basis,
where appropriate and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

* when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, an
associate and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

* when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, an
associate and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) advertising income, when the advertisements have
been published or broadcasted;

(b) circulation income, when the newspapers and
magazines have been delivered;

(¢) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold,

(d) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4. TESHWMEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

(e) from the rendering of services, when the services
have been rendered;

(f) interest and investment income, on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument to the net carrying amount of
the financial assets;

(g) securities transactions are accounted for on a trade
date basis; and

(h) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Employee benefits
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model, further details of which
are given in note 33 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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